

Dr. Daniel Wilson, President of Toronto University, has sent us a copy of a "Notice of St. Margaret's Chapel,"\* at Edinburgh Castle, contributed by the tributed by him, as honourary member of the Society of Antiquaries of Scotland, and published in the proceedings of that society. Among the few historical remains of the Scottish capital, the Chapel of St. Margaret, on the Castle rock, is the oldest and most interesting. In 1067, Altheling made his way to Scotland with his mother and two sisters sisters, of whom one was Margaret, and the famous Black Rood which became the national palladium Neville's Cross. After a time, Margaret became the Cross Canmore. the queen of the great chief Malcolm Canmore. The sanctity of this distinguished woman is reverently dwelt upon by the author, and the details of her life are given, and thenceforward the paper is devoted to the history of the chapel bearing her name, after she was canonized by Pope Eugenius III. In 1845, The Doctor began his researches by finding in one of the vaults, a so-called baptismal font, which was in reality the socket of the pillar on the ninth side of the chancel arch. These arches are described, and the architecture of the chapel and a plan, drawn by Sir Henry Dryden, in 1886, are given. The life of Queen Margaret reads like a legend, and the graphic incidents of her death are worthy of a poem and a painting. In her last moments she asked for the Black Rood, so called from its black case or fertory. It was a cross of Pure gold, about an ell long and set with diamonds. It shut and opened like a chest. Inside was a portion of the true cross, having a figure of the Saviour carved in massive ivory and marvellously adorned with gold. Margaret had brought this with her to Scotland and given it as an heirloom to her some her sons, and the youngest of them. David, built a magnificient church for it called Holy-Rood. Along with the chapel the story of Edinburgh Castle is related, till its destruction in the siege of 1573, with almost the sole exception of St. Margarer's 1273 garet's little oratory. From this point down, through many pages that read like a romantic history that the tory that they really are, we have particulars about the sons and successors of the good queen, and some touches on Mary of Guise and Mary Stuart, Freir or Friar Black and other worthies, all told in the best scholarly spirit. Dr. Wilson winds up by saying that the main features of the ancient Edinburgh Castle are now far advanced in restoration, but he congratulates his country and himself that, although St. Margaret's Chapel was included in this work, it has escaped the renovating process which an architect is too prone to carry out under the name of restoration.

One sanctuary leads to another. "Mary's First Shrine in the Wilderness" is the title of a pamphlet by two clergymen of Pittsburg, Pa. It recounts the bit of that great counts the history of the foundation of that great manufacturing city, and the church services held therein from the beginning. and explorer of that country was Lasalle who, about the year 1670, left Presqu'isle (Erie) and striking the head 1870, left Presqu'isle (Erie) and striking the head waters of La Rivière aux Baufs (French Creek), 15 or 20 miles distant, continued his course down and Ohio course down the creek and the Allegheny and Ohio dam to the rapids at Louisville. Thus this priest made known the Ohio to the world, as he afterward did the Mississippi. The French took possession of the country and the Country of the country and the Country of the coun of the Country and built fortifications at Presqu'isle.

In 1752 the Analysis of the Prescribed a fort at In 1753, the American colonists raised a fort at the "Forks" since called the "Point," at the confluence of a since called the since called fluence of the Allegheny and Mononagahela, and in 17th World Medical and Mononagahela. in 1754 Washington commanding an expedition there. there, was obliged to surrender to the French who Pounced upon him. The latter rebuilt the fort at the Point, calling it Duquesne after the became a frequent agree of bettle. Braddock was became a frequent scene of battle. Braddock was

\*Notice of St. Margaret's Chapel, Edinburgh Castle, by Daniel

defeated ten miles from there, in 1755, and Major Grant, in 1758. But in November 1758, the French had to withdraw before a superior force, under General Forbes, and set fire to all their buildings. Among these was the chapel standing on the spot where the first divine service was held on the 17th April, 1754, by a Soldier of the Cross, Charles Baron, known in the Recollet Order, to which he belonged, as Father Denys. It is the history of this shrine, the first of its kind in the wilderness of the present United States, down to The title of itself was beautiful. One our time. record calls it the chapel at "Fort Duquesne of the beautiful River" (the Ohio) and later the fort and whole settlement was set down as "Fort Duquesne under the title of the Assumption of the Blessed Virgin of the Beautiful River." The shrine lay in ruins for over a century, when in 1869, a chapel was built on its site, and a church, in 1876. The object now is to replace the original shrine by a fitting memorial, in the shape of an historical work of sculpture, and for this, subscriptions, even in low amounts, are solicited to be addressed to Rev. Morgan M. Sheedy, 48 Third avenue, Pittsburgh, Pa.

## A JAPANESE HOME.

Life and customs in a Japanese family of good blood and training in Japan embodies much of picturesque interest. To the foreigner so fortunate as to find an entrance within, such a home is a perpetual surprise and delight. In one such we were a favoured guest, during our stay in the Empire, where the household consisted of parents, two grown daughters, two little girls and three sons, one an infant, with their grandmother, three nurses and a large retinue of servants. Was this charming household to be called "pagan," "heathen?"—this home full to repletion of refinement, patriotism, noble arts and culture? gestive history was here likewise. The father was a patriot indeed, having yielded his revenues and princely title without a murmur, for the nation's weal, under the new reign. The lady-mother and eldest daughter were peers to the ladies of any land in beauty, ornament, elegant dress, skill in household management, and in the arts of social and polite life as prescribed by etiquette.

This mother was as strong in tenderness, patience and long-suffering, for and with her children, as the mothers of America, and equally faithful and assiduous in their training and education. She taught her daughters as her mother had taught her, that the three fundamental duties of woman are obedience to her parents when a child, to her husband when married, and to her eldest son if she becomes a widow. She also instructed them in the ordering of the whole conduct of life; household and social management, moral and physical duties, letter-writing, proverbs, poems, and all enforced by tales of noble women.

Boys and girls were both drilled in the histories of Japan and China, and in the traditionary, heroic and mythological lore of their own land. The sons were trained to manly sports and exploits, and were taught to overcome obstacles by the symbol over the massive outer door, where swung the huge paper carp, suspended from a bamboo pole, ever reminding the youth of Japan how the

carp leaps the waterfall. It was a grand old roof which sheltered this household; a house of solid timber, sixty feet broad by one hundred deep, with lofty rooms and long, wide corridors. Its one storey had an immense and imposing sloping roof, which covered fourteen apartments and many balconies. The sliding partitions could all be removed and make, on occasion, a noble hall with many columns. The ceiling was made of fine-grained wood and

fifteen feet from the floor.

This home was shielded from the street by a wall of tiles, built with cement and lined with a row of firs of mighty girth. The main gate was supported by heavy tree-trunks and covered with an ornamental roof. Just inside was the porter's lodge. Near this lodge was a clump of evergreens, and underneath their shadow stood an ark, cut from solid stone, about four feet high. This was the family shrine for treasuring sacred mementoes

and religious emblems. Just beyond was a rockery of great beauty, where fountains tossed their spray and toyed with sun and moonbeams. Here and there the mockungi tree shed its purple blossoms to the breeze from lofty heights, while azaleas and starry asters bloomed beneath its foot.

All about the garden camellias of brilliant red or purest white unfolded their lovely buds from low-growing shrubs, while now and then a camellia tree, towering fifty feet in the air, entranced the eye with its wax-like blossoms. Moats of running water were bounded by stone walls, moss-covered and flower-decked, where darted and dived the various tribes of fish. Here grew and bloomed the lotus, king among the flowers of Japan. Here came happy children, looking upon its wondrous beauty with unspeakable delight. Into this charming garden the infant was carried by its nurse and grew up the playmate of butterflies, bees and birds.

The dining-room of this house, with its cool matted floors and soft, luxurious cushions, was characteristic of the house. The low table was always decked with flowers in costly vases of bronze, and not infrequently boughs of the blossoming trees were hung about the walls. Huge pyramids of half-peeled oranges and sliced sponge cake whetted the appetite for more substantial food. At luncheon hour obsequious servants appeared with lacquered trays of dainty plates and confections, and tiniest cups of tea set in metal When we were served, they bowed with sockets. foreheads to the floor and disappeared.

When dining we found upon the board a fine fish and leg of venison, a goose or duck, with sweet potatoes and eggs, a basket of pears and oranges, or a tray of persimmons, sweet potatoe custard, cakes and lemon jelly.

Often have we sat in the wide corridors, during the noonday heats, watching the ladies weave their rich embroideries or paint on silk; or paced the garden paths with rare delight while the moonlight sifted through the tall firs, silvering the spray of the fountains and illuminating the lotus blossoms in the moat-listening to tales from the quaint grandmother, or the courtly speech of the father of the dwellers in this old home more than two hundred years ago; of the many births and deaths beneath this roof; of the sickness, and joyous banquet and marriage; of the many festivalsthe Feast of the Dolls—for the girls, when, year after year, the great nursery was decked with blooming boughs and the many toys in which Japan abounds, while beautiful mimic life of motherhood and housekeeping prevailed for one entire day; of the Feast of the Banners, when the boys were marched out in triumph to the streets with emblazoned banners to enact a mimic war; of the New Year day, when master and servants pledged anew their devotion to each other; of the religious festivals, when the household, like a great heart, beat for the birth and death, the joy and sorrow of its tenantry.

Here the child had come to thrill the parents'

hearts with joy, and after one hundred days had been taken to the temple, where the shaven priest had written a charm and placed it in the child's prayer-bag. Here, for two centuries, the daughters had been given in marriage without spoken vow or priestly rite, but by gift and song, dance and cheer began their new career. From thence, down through the shadow of these mighty trees, had gone forth the funeral cortege to the cremarium, with a hearse of pure white wood, borne on the shoulders of men, followed by mourners with muffled swords, and women in pure white robes and caps of floss-silk. Then prayers had been read, bells tinkled, candles lighted, and the body of the loved one was laid on the pyre, after which the fires were lighted by the brothers of the dead. When all was over, the ashes were deposited in the family urn, while in the oratory of this house, where the sacred lights and incense burn, another gilt-lettered tablet was set among the ancestral names, to be honored by later generations.

Thus, these walls had echoed with song and laughter, with cries and sobs. Each day we reallaughter, with cries and sobs. Each day we realized what a *home* it had been,—not like ours, but none the less a home, for all the completeness of life had sanctified it.—*Helen Strong Thompson*.